ARENA AUTHORITY

TION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, September 24, 2003
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Board Room, 3™ Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
IL Approval of August 27, 2003 Minutes Action
Convention
Arena IIL. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
Authority .
IV. Committee Reports
John Logie, JURP. . :
Ch:m:un a. Building Committee Information
Lew Chamberlin .
Clif Charles b. Operatlons Committee Information
David Frey i. CVB Update Information
Steven Heacock
Birgit Klohs ¢. Finance Committee
Joseph Tomaselli 1. Approval of Disbursements Action
il. Approval of SMG Financial Reports Action
iii. Approval of CAA Financial Report Action
V. SMG Report Information
i. Facilities Calendar
V1. Liquor Control Commission Authorization Resolution Action
VII. Other Business
i. Status of Trademark Registration Information
VIII. Public Comment
IX. Next Meeting Date: October 22, 2003
Note: The CAA Board will meet on Wednesday, December 3, 2003, for
a combined November/December meeting.
)\\[\{ E\[\Dﬁ[\ X. Adjournment
Van Andel Arena
(1330 l;u[Rfon West o Mononi Cenl\'leV‘I/'
nro .
6{2"742"2},(’50 M1 49503 Grand Rapids, eMIV::‘?503
Fax 616.742.6197 616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6590




Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, August 27, 2003

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present:

John Logie, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles
David Frey
Birgit Klohs

Members Absent: Steve Heacock
Joseph Tomaselli

Staff/Others: Matt Barnes Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Robert DuHadway DK Security
Joe Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Jim Gray CAA Owner Representative
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Bill Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Al Vanderberg Kent County
Jon VanHouten Progressive AE
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting

. Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Minutes of the June 25, 2003,
meetings of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

1. DeVos Place Construction Update

Members watched videotape of the Welsh Auditorium roof implosion. The roof was demolished with 21
pounds of C-4 plastic explosives planted on the trusses. The street was reopened within five minutes after
the detonation. Sorting and hauling off of the debris is 95% complete. Mr. Erhardt reported that



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 27,2003 -2

construction continues to progress on time and within budget. The Exhibit Hall will be finished in time
for the Woodworkers Expo in November. Testing has occurred on the Grand Gallery electrical systems.
Final testing and system balancing of the HVAC is in process. The phase 3 contractor found an old fuel

oil tank 12°-15” below grade. The tank has been removed and contaminated soil will be hauled to the
Ottawa landfill.

Iv. Committee Reports
Building Committee

Mr. Frey reported that final polishing has begun on the terrazzo floor system. Grand Galley painting is
complete, along with the installation of the snake light. In the meeting rooms, drywall finishing, painting,
and ceiling grid installations are complete. Carpet is in process on the meeting level, along with wood

doors. The enclosure of the exhibit box is complete. The temporary floor will be taken apart within the
next month.

The Building Committee recommended approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with Grand Action
related to DeVos Performance Hall Interior Renovation. Grand Action has agreed to fund the entire $4.4
million cost. The scope of work includes refurbishment of existing theater seating; provide new interior
finish for walls, flooring, and painting of balcony ceiling; enhance lighting in side circulation and balcony
overhang areas with color wall wash and accent fixtures; replace balcony light fixtures; redesign all
balcony fronts to create a refreshed look and improve sight lines; address ADA issues in house seating
areas, orchestra, mezzanine, balcony; and coordinate the introduction of a multi-media video system.

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Resolution Approving completion of
the DeVos Performance Hall Interior Renovation Project and Approving and Authorizing Entering Into
Certain Agreements Related Thereto. Motion carried unanimously.

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated the Operations Committee met with MDOT and City officials regarding plans to
refurbish bridges on I-196 east of US-131. MDOT must complete an environmental impact study of the
entire corridor before construction begins. MDOT would like to begin the work in 2005, but the
environmental impact study may not be approved until 2006 or 2007. The restoration work will include
bridges on Ottawa Avenue, Ionia Avenue, and Division. The work will be done in stages so that two
lanes are maintained at all times. The bridge restoration will be completed within one construction season
(April-November), although prep work could start before April and finish work completed after
November.

The Operations Committee recommended approval of M/WBE Police and Administrative Guideline
revisions as requested by the City of Grand Rapids. Specific revisions to the Policy were summarized in
a memorandum included with the agenda packet.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to adopt the City of Grand Rapids M/WBE
Policy and Administrative Guideline Revisions. Motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Helmstead reported that the CVB sales team is 80% ahead of its goal for the year. New bookings for
DeVos Place include the National Association of County Agricultural Agenda, the National Fishing Lure
Collectors, and the Michigan Townships Association. The CVB hosted 19 meeting planners for a FAM
tour August 7-10. The CVB will welcome 17-21 travel journalists for a press tour in September. In
October, the CVB will co-sponsor an educational event in Washington, D.C. for 65 meeting planners.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 27,2003 -3

Finance Committee
Mr. White presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period June 13 — August 14, 2003

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve payment of disbursements and payroll
totaling $8, 629,100.88. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for the Van
Andel Arena® and Grand Center for the periods ended June 30 and July 31, 2003. Motion carried
unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statements Prepared by Beene Garter LLP

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the periods ended June 30 and July 31, 2003.
Motion carried unanimously.

d. General Liability Insurance Renewal

Mr. White asked the Board to validate action taken by the Finance Committee to bind coverage for
renewal of the general liability insurance coverage. The policy expired August 23. The renewal proposal
is basically the same terms and conditions as the expiring policy. The primary limit is $1 million and the
endorsed excess liability limit is $9 million. The renewal premium was $3,846, while the expiring
premium was $3,799.

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to validate the action of the Finance Committee to
approve renewal of the general liability insurance policy. Motion carried unanimously.

V. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to Sublease

Mr. Wendt recommended approval of an amendment to the Sublease Agreement with Kent County in
connection with the issuance by the City-County Building Authority of additional bonds in the amount of
$10 million needed to complete DeVos Place.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Resolution Approving and
Authorizing the Execution of a First Amendment to Sublease Agreement Related to DeVos Place with the
County of Kent in Connection with the Issuance by the City-County Building Authority of Additional
Bonds to Finance a Portion of the Costs of Improvement, Expansion and Renovation of DeVos Place.
Motion carried unanimously.

VL SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan stated that upcoming events include Shania Twain, ZZ Top, Neil Young, Sports Hall of
Fame induction, circus, Pistons game, Floyd Mayweather boxing event, Griffins, AHL All Star game,
Harlem Globetrotters, NCAA regional hockey tournament, high school basketball doubleheader,
symphony classical and pops, the Starlight Express.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 27,2003 -4

VIII. Other Business
None.

IX. Public Comments

None.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:25 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item IV.a.

BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority

September 24, 2003

GRAND GALLERY

Bay Area Interiors, our subcontractor has begun final polishing of the epoxy terrazzo system. Painting is
complete along with the installation of the snake light. The exterior sections of the canopies have received
paint and lighting. Painting of the high architectural feature wall is complete.

In the Meeting Rooms, drywall finishing, painting and ceiling grid installations are complete. The acoustic
wall panel installation is complete on the Meeting Level, and the street level. Carpet is complete on the
meeting level along with wood doors. Skyway level carpeting is in process.

Ceramic tile installations are complete in the Meeting Level, Street Level and Parking Level Restrooms. Toilet
partitions and fixtures are installed as well. Ceramic tile work is now complete in the concessions and public

restroom areas on the first floor adjacent to the Exhibit Hall. Preparations are underway for the arrival of the
food service equipment next month.

Andy J. Egan Mechanical Co. and ElecTech are complete with the HVAC systems that serve most of the
Grand Gallery. Final testing and system balancing is in process, and nearly complete.

Work is underway for the addition of an additional escalator between the Skyway Level and the Meeting
Level.

Overall the Grand Gallery and Meeting spaces remain on track for completion as scheduled.

EXHIBIT HALL

The performance testing of the Exhibit Hall Box Trusses was conducted this month. The testing satisfied the
design criteria and allowed for final test and balance of the air and water distribution system to begin.

The enclosure of the Exhibit Box is complete. Soffit trim will continue on the East and West. Roofing, brick
and overhead doors at the dock are complete. Exterior windows at the dock area are being framed in for

glazing next month.

Page 1



SITE WORK

Wotk has progressed well along Michigan Street and in front of DeVos Hall. These areas, along with the
Monroe drop off lane are to be completed the fall of 2003. Planter Wall construction along the West side of
the Exhibit Hall began in April and continues. The snowmelt slab has been placed in front of DeVos Hall,
and finished pavers are installed. The area of new sidewalk in front of DeVos Hall is open to the public
beginning September 2, 2003.

PHASE 3

The Welsh Auditorium has been demolished via implosion on 07/19/03. Sotting and hauling off of the
rubble and debris has been completed. Nicholson Contracting, the new deep foundation subcontractor has
mobilized and begun drilling for their foundation work. Note that an extensive amount of poor soils have
been encountered and is in process of being removed via over-excavation.

The DeVos Hall new Scene Shop, along with the new Dressing Rooms was completed during the proceeding
90-day period. The users of DeVos Hall occupied the space beginning in early September 2003.

Page 2



Item IV.c.i.

NENERANDUM

CITY OF GRAND RARPIDS

DATE: September 15, 2003
TO: Steve Heacock

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM: Jana M. Wallace
Acting Assistant to thg/ City Manager

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures for the period are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
August 28, 2003 $ 18,572.60 $ 256,933.96
September 15, 2003 ~ 58,238.14 3,903,562.79
Payroll date — 08/22/2003 1,973.09 --

Payroll date — 09/05/2003 2,086.29 -

Disbursements from C/AAFunds $ 80,870.12 $4,160,496.75

Total disbursements for the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period August 22 through September 15, 2003, were $4,241,366.87.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



£0025280 21 six poAedoisauiees

sasuadxa uononijsuod-uou / bugessdo = O
sasuadxa paje|al uooONISUC) = 9

jJuswied 10) pasSa20id S9D10AU| [BJO1  96'906°GlZ $
JUno29y HGunesadQ wouy Juswled 10 papIUgng SOJI0AU| [BJOL  09°2.S‘8L  $
JUNO22Y UOHINIISUO) WOI) JuUdWAR 10 PAJIIGNS S3DIOAU| JBI0)  96'€£6°95Z ¢
S90IAIDS |edsly A1 Aq paplwigng SadloAu| - [ejol-gns  0p'SL9'8L  §
€002 Jaquisydag - Jebeuew aAnesisiuiwpe 10} SJyoUSQ ddURINSU|  £00Z/¥1/80 zeeve yyesH fiuod O
llo:Aed £0/22/80 10} quuod aakojdws - JGp sabeuew uwpy  £002/22/80 007091 LG - uonelodiod Juswalley VINOI 0
lioJAed £0/80/80 10} qUIU0D dafojdwa - LG SJebeuew ulwPY  £00Z/80/80 00091 LG - uopelodiod uawaiey YOI 0]
lloiAed £0/22/80 404 SqLIU0D aakojdwaaioldws - vIOy sJ6w ulwpy  £002/22/80 00°9vC V10t - uojjesodiod juswaiay VNI 0
llo1Aed £0/80/80 40} squIu0d dakojdwayiakoldwa - L0y SJ6wW WPy  £00Z/80/80 00'9¥2 V10t - uojesodio) juswamay YOI o)
€002 Bny - 18jusn puels) 10} SBOIAISS JOMSS pUR JBJBA £002/12/80 €8'%90°L Jainseal} A)1) spidey puels o)
€002 aunr - s19jew aARessiulwpe osiw a1 saoIAes (697 £002/62/L0 08°'G6€ OTd wbupm uosuppiga O
€002 aunp - abesanod aoueinsul a1 saolAles (BB £002/62/L0 00'992 OTld Wbum uosuppia O
€00¢ aunr - 8se9) ||BqIO0) 81 seOIAISS BB £002/62/L0 00'6¥2°C OTdwbum uosunppia O
€002 aunr - jJuswaaibe JunHAapseys3 a1 seolnes [eBa  £002/62/L0 08¢y OT1d yBum uosupdIqg 0
€002 AInf - 18)ua) puels 1o} SeOIAISS [BOUIOBIT  £002/90/80  S9THYEL ABseuz siswnsuod O
$391A198 [eaS14 319 Aq papiwgng S8210AU|
Jabeuely yoafoid Aq paplwqng sadloAu] - [e}01-qNS  91°1689SZ $
€0/1€/L0 NI £0/1L0/) - Bunnsuod swajsAs suopedluNWWod  £00Z/¥1/80 00°098°L} ou| Bupinsuo ynq Haqoy 0
€002°1€ AInr - Buidwinp jlos pajeuiwejuo)  £002/9L/80  6£'8.Z llypue] funod emeno 0
€002 AInr - @9y ubisap adeld SOA 8Q  £002/80/80 G8'5Z6'L 3v anissaiboid 0
G 10 G ‘€002 AInr - sabueyo pajsanbai JsumO  £002/80/80 1G22’} 3v aaissaiboid 0
G 40 ¥ '€002 AInr - sabueyo pejsanbai Jaumo  £002/80/80 ¥Z'ssl'e 3v aAissaiboid 0
G Jo € ‘€002 AIn - sabueyo pajsenbaljeumO  €00Z/SL/80  SLOSY'Y 3V aAIssalboid 0
G Jo 2 '€00Z AInf - sabueyo pajsenbas jsumO  £002/80/80 9.°9Zv'v 3v aaissalboid o}
G 40 | ‘€002 AInf - sebueyo pajsanbal JaumQ  £002/€1/80 ¥6'821°2 av anissaiboud 0
€002 AInr - soydels [eyuswiuolAug  £002/80/80 £6°'€€6 3v anissaiboid o)
€002 AInf - aAnejuasaldal sjospyose a)is-u0  £002/80/80 00°0¥2°21 3v aAIssaiboid 0
€002 AInr - seuossaooe / Je Jousjul [leH SOA®Q  £002/80/80 69°68Y'L 3v anissaiboid 0
€002 AInr - seo1nss ubisap [eanjoauyoly  £002/€1/80 60°665'v. 3v aaissaibold 0
£002/90/80 jo se sabieyd suoyd Jejn||ao saalejussaldal sJoumQ £00Z/11/80 2e'€91 SuoledIUNWILLOY) |9IXON o)
8 # JuswAed - 18)uad UORUBAUOYD JO) SWRYSAS Ajunoss sidyiN ~ £002/81/20 00°00€°G0L Aunoag syejspin 0
€002 AInp - sediales aseyd uononsuod  £002/80/80 9e'¥eL'LL ou| syueynsuo) Buysa] sjeusiep 0
suopnenjeAs %o0p Buipeo  £002/L€/20 £€6'956'8 ¢ Juj Jaxjlem Hed o)
J96euepy 10afoad Aq pepiwgng S9210AU|
PaAla2al Sad1A1as | palinboe sjeliajew jo uondiiosag ajeq junowy aoAed
9DI0AUY|

Ka1j0d Buidasspjoog juaung sy} Aq pazuoyiny se ‘00z ‘gz 1snbny uo JuswAed Joj passad0ld S82I0AU| JO 1S
ALRIOHLNY VNIV / NOILLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3M - SAIdVY ANVYDO



£0020160 2p SiX"poLedoisauieed

juswAed 10j passannid Sa2I0AU] [e}0L

sasuadxa Buyelsado ; uoyonISUOI-UON = O
sasuadxa paje|d) UoRINIISUOD JAJUSY) UOURAUOY = O

£6°008°L96°C$

junoddy BunesadQ wouy Juawhed 10§ paRILGNS SIJIOAUE [BJO1  ¥1°8EZ'8S $
JUNODJY UOHIONIISUOY WO JuswAed J0) PaRIWIGNS SOJI0AU| |BJOL 62296 C06'ES
S99IAI9G [e9S1d ANND Aq papIwgNg S3D10AU] - [€J01-QNS  $L'BEZ8E  §
Buneaw g00z Bny o) sxoeus / sebesensg £002/22/80 8922 soMueg 930D J0H pidey O
sa|id/salddng 800 £002/1L£/80 058y lodsgaoyo O
€002 1snBny - seojAles wesls eualy  £00Z/1E/80 92218Vl SYIOM 2lgnd joidag hunop ey O
€002 1snbny - saojues weals Jjud) puel)  £00Z/LE/B0  ZZ68Y SHIOM 2NaNd Jo ideg Aunop sy O
£00¢ }snbny - seolues weays jlems  €002/L€/80  00°0) SHOM ANgNd Jo ideg Aunop ey O
Jobeuepy aanensiuIWpY J0j wnwald adUBINSU] 8)1] |[enuuy €002Z/1L£/80 00°282 9jI |euoneN uosyoer lo)
laBeuepy aagensiuupy Joj wniwaud Aigesip lenuuy  €002/22/80  00°689°L [emny siounl O
€002 99 - 1deg - Jejua) puels) Jo} suyl Jejem uogosioid 8ty £002/82/80  T6'6C Jainseas) M) spidey puesy O
£002 99( - 1dag - Jejua) puels) 1o sulf sjem uoiosjoid 8l  €00Z/82/80  Z6'6C Jainseas) Ao spidey puesy O
€002 98Q - 1dag - J18)ua) pUBID 1o} dul| Jajem uoposiosd all4  £00Z/82/80 8Ly Jainsealy AD spidey puelsy O
€002 1snbny - sabieyd Jomas/iajem 131w uonebil) £002/82/80 £9°1L92 Jainseal) Al spidey puelo 0
€002 1snbny - Uy JO} SBOINISS JOMBS pueB JB)BM  £002/82/80  §2°9G1°C Jainseasy A spidey pueis O
€002 AINf - s1epew [esaudb a1 seolues @68 £002/52/80 00281 OTd wbupmuosuppiIa O
€002 AINf - ysjd Jo uoisojdwil 10y douBINSUL B) sBOIAIBS [BBRT  £002/62/80  SE'VEE OTdwbupmuosuppia O
€002 AInr - abueyo uosess abedwey a1 seoimes 6687 £002/52/80 09'el OTidwbumuosunpiga O
€002 AInf - 801A18s pooy) Iy dnissaiboid/m juube a1 seoinues 8687 €002/52/80 00702 OT1d Wbumuosuppig O
£002 1snBny - eualy J0j SBOIAISS [BOUORIT  £00Z/9Z/80  8L'GhY'ZE ABsuz s;swnsuo) O
£002 1snBny - JEMAYS J0j S8DIAISS |BOLIOBIT  £00Z/92/80  99'9¥E‘Z ABssug s;ewnsuod O
£0/1€/L UBnoiy) seo1nes pus-1eak cOA4 @ Buidesyioog €002/92/80  00°9€E'2 dTlsepegauseg O
S321A19G [easid A)1) AQ paniuigng Sad10AU]
Jabeuely Jo9(01d Aq peiLgNS S30I0AU] - [€J01-GNS 6L2ISE06'E S
£002 1snBny - seoinies uswabeuew afold  £002/LE/80  00°096°01 Heleg 'siswwog 9
eynsuod 344  €£002/0E/L0  Z6'€9E eydepeliud - ONS 9
6 # JuswAed - Jsjua) uoyUAAUOY Joy swalsAs Aundss SdINN - £002/02/80 00°006'6 Aunoag areispi 0
£00¢ 1snbny - seojales aseyd uolonysUO)  £002/80/60  L8°L6V'LL ou| sjueynsuo) Bunsa] sieusiey O
£00¢ 1snbny - seoines Juswaebeuew pafoly  £002/80/60 05'226°01L ou| Bugnsuo) Aes d 0
au|| 1nd Jleday - joafoud Buyges ainonuseyu|  £002/0Z/90  05°259°'L sjojuog uosuyor 9
Builqed Jaqy / 1addoo - Joslosd Buigeo aumonaseyul  €002/52/80  00°692°.€ ou| eysifiz-ushey O
Buiige Jaqy / Joddoo - Joslod Buiges sinongseyu)  £002/41/80 00°/92'6€ au| ensjhz-usked 0
€002 isnbny - sbugeaw / Buginsuod wajshs Junoas  £00Z/50/60  00°006°L sisAg nosgjang sebuijey o Auer o
€€ # wawAed ssaiboid Joj abeulelsy  £00Z/1€/80  00°289°LLL Junodoy abeuleloy YYD OX-HO O
[eatyos|a / Aiuosew / |essuab - uononnsuo) (g #)wd ssaifold  €£00Z/LE/80  00°€60°209'€$ QINJUBA JUIOM ¥ JUNH -Jpieys D
PaA1adal $321AI3S | pasinbae sjelajew jo uonduosaq ajeq junowy o9Aed
9210AU]|

Aotjod Buideaypioog uaung ayy Aq pazuouyiny se ‘€00z ‘Gl Jequisydasg uo juswiAed 10} passad0ld SaDI0AU] JO ISI
ALRIOHLNY YNIYVY / NOILLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3M - SAIdVY ANVID



Item IV.c.ii.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
10 282 292 292 -
1,310 555,765 557,075 557,075 -
11,349 1,395,425 1,406,774 1,406,774 -
8,000 784,184 792,184 792,184 -
19,349 2,179,609 2,198,958 2,198,958 -
3,115 178,885 182,000 182,000 -
22,464 2,358,494 2,380,958 2,380,958 -
18,868 93,340 112,208 112,208 -
28,048 170,663 198,711 198,711 -
11,442 64,997 76,439 76,439 -
56,410 742,937 799,347 799,347 -
57,066 691,194 748,260 748,260 -
9,015 72,629 81,644 81,644 -
26,879 106,309 133,188 133,188 -
131,825 1,697,759 1,829,584 1,829,584 -
339,554 3,639,828 3,979,381 3,979,385 -
(317,090) (1,281,334) {1,598,423) {1,598,427) -
(317,090) (1,281,334) (1,598,423) (1,598,427) -

DeVos Place has performed better than expected during the first
two months of the fiscal year. Revenue has fallen below expected
levels, however, labor has also come in under expected levels due

to less events and the timing of new hires.

n




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating resuits for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH August August August
Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 7 9 11
Attendance 2,370 12,250 11,263
Direct Event Income $7,241 $19,309 $62,120
Ancillary Income 4,601 3,441 27,500
Other Income 1,552 15,166 5,366
indirect Expenses (183,980) (244,301) (183,050)
Net Income ($170,586) ($206,385) ($88,064)
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 10 10 39
Attendance 3,310 12,750 16,663
Direct Event Income $11,349 $20,973 $206,656
Ancillary Income 8,000 4,244 50,917
Other Income 3,115 30,332 11,518
Indirect Expenses (339,554) (489,602) (325,868)
Net Income ($317,090) ($434,053) ($56,778)
Less Capital
Net Income after Capital ($317,090) ($434,053) ($56,778)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in below expectations due to the facility not hosting a "Supersale”
that was originally in the budget.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in higher than expected due to the World Wide Christian Bookstores
event that was held during the month. Decorator revenue associated with the event came
in much higher than originally expected.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in lower than budgeted due to savings in the payroll area.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

----------------- CURRENT - = = = === = === = o mmoe mmmemcecm oo oo e YD mmmmmmmmmmm oo e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 7,863 19,775 59,111 13,088 22,400 207,926
SERVICES INCOME <622> <466> 3,009 <1,738> <1,427> <1,270>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 7,241 19,309 62,120 11,349 20,973 206,656
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 622 882 13,354 2,490 882 18,946
NOVELTY 0 0 7,336 () 0 7,336
ELECTRICAL 72 0 570 72 0 654
OTHER ANCILLARY 3,907 2,559 6,241 5,438 3,362 23,981
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 4,601 3,441 27,500 8,000 4,244 50,917
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 11,842 22,750 89,620 19,349 25,217 257,572
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1,552 15,166 5,366 3,115 30,332 11,518
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 13,394 37,916 94,986 22,464 55,549 269,090
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,326 9,352 7,207 18,868 18,704 14,067
FINANCE 13,548 16,559 13,003 28,048 33,118 24,024
MARKETING 9,117 6,370 4,133 11,442 12,740 6,581
OPERATIONS 33,206 61,507 34,880 56,410 124,014 59,598
EVENT MANAGEMENT 28,538 49,534 38,611 57,066 99,068 72,084
BOX OFFICE 5,140 6,802 7,050 9,015 13,604 12,402
SALES 17,525 11,100 0 26,879 22,200 0
OVERHEAD 67,580 83,077 78,165 131,825 166,154 137,112
INDIRECT EXPENSES 183,980 244,301 183,050 339,554 489,602 325,868
NET OPERATING INCOME <170,586> <206,385> <88, 064> <317,090> <434,053> <56,778>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <170,586> <206,385> <88, 064> <317,090> <434,053> <56,778>




Advertising Billed
Stagehands Billed
Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed
Traffic Control Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Insurance Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense
Stagehand Wages

Security Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Ushers & T/T Wages

Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense
Traffic Control Expense

EMT Medical Expense
Cleaning Wages

Insurance Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

DE VOS PLACE

STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

---------------- CURRENT----------------- -«-----www-u---YEAR TO DATE-------=-==----
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
0 0 6,217 0 0 6,217
2,633 2,750 24,389 7,634 4,050 34,930
0 1,700 2,452 0 1,700 3,294
259 750 3,553 342 750 5,551
0 300 200 0 300 1,150
0 2,888 8,801 0 2,888 8,801
300 (] 1] 300 0 0
0 0 713 0 [ 713
53 0 [ 53 0 0
0 550 352 0 550 846
0 655 0 [ 655
0 1,375 0 0 3,990
0 4,745 2 [ 4,865
3,245 8,938 53,452 8,331 10,238 71,013
0 0 6,372 o] 0 6,372
2,388 2,668 23,324 7,167 3,929 33,512
1] 1,700 0 0 1,700 0
0 0 2,469 o] 0 3,312
181 525 2,481 240 525 3,886
350 437 o 350 835
0 1,011 3,241 0 1,011 3,241
0 0 713 0 ] 713
229 750 529 229 750 875
0 550 277 0 550 646
1,068 1,850 5,288 2,246 2,850 13,549
0 0 505 0 o] 505
0 0 4,800 187 0 4,837
3,866 9,404 50,443 10,069 11,665 72,284
<622> <466> 3,009 <1,738> <1,427> <1,270>




DE VOS PLACE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED DEPOSITS
REFUND LIABILITY
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH

FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH

CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

AUGUST 31, 2003

1,506,380

292,017

74,952
1,873,350

1,873,350

408,716

182,060

161,605

7,162

71,537
837,080

(317,090)

1,353,360

1,036,270

1,873,350



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

----------------- CURRENT - - ==~ == === ===mmmce mmmm e o YTD s == mmmm oo mem oo -
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 51,923 81,937 45,363 103,310 163,874 88,667
Part-Time 2,693 11,295 6,429 5,876 22,590 11,160
Wages-Trade 19,377 94,699 44,721 37,956 189, 398 78,316
Auto Allowance 1,971 0 0 3,942 ] 0
Auto Expense 150 2,271 1,521 300 4,542 3,042
Taxes & Benefits 21,038 46,930 25,425 38,080 93, 860 42,236
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <19,574> <115,718> <47,223> <37,606> <231, 436> <78,421>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 77,579 121,414 76,235 151,858 242,828 145,000
Contracted Security 5,803 0 3,988 10,486 0 10,080
Other Contracted Services 0 183 186 0 366 372
Travel & Entertainment 2,254 1,209 1,353 2,753 2,418 1,353
Corporate Travel 0 833 0 221 1,666 0
Meetings & Conventions 2,565 2,000 3,030 4,060 4,000 3,030
Dues & Subscriptions 1,537 42 0 1,537 84 0
Employee Training 0 833 0 0 1,666 0
Computer Expense 2,365 5,417 3,666 4,875 10, 834 6,095
Professional Fees 3,102 2,625 1,774 6,669 5,250 3,424
Marketing & Advertising 14,005 2,967 1,215 15,082 5,934 1,215
Box Office Expenses 0 0 17 [ 0 71
Small Equipment 0 0 2,389 0 0 2,389
Trash Removal 327 0 1,117 327 1,000 1,233
Equipment Rental 333 500 36 376 1, 000 189
Landscaping 0 0 0 0 0 <69>
Exterminating 375 4] 375 378 0 750
Construction Costs 3,588 3,200 0 6,795 6,400 0
Repairs & Maintenance 7,088 12,084 4,679 8,198 24,168 11,081
Supplies 2,589 14,667 11,089 8,347 29,334 11,618
Bank Service Charges 537 750 643 1,179 1,500 1,233
Insurance 8,972 18,010 8,954 12,661 36, 020 12,784
Printing & Stationary 1,332 625 0 1,332 1,250 [
Office Supplies 654 625 341 767 1,250 1,237
Postage 261 417 222 271 834 0
Parking Expense 1,719 2,000 1,489 3,335 4,000 2,809
Telephone Long Distance 2,249 4,375 5,618 4,346 8, 750 5,879
Utilities 24,997 30,000 34,385 54,997 60, 000 65,094
Base Fee 19,752 19,525 20,250 38,709 39,050 39,000
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 106,402 122,887 106,815 187,696 246,774 180,868
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 183,980 244,301 183,050 339,554 489,602 325,868




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 45,000 55,000 50% Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 45,000 140,000
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 45,000 140,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,522  (1,598,423) (104,901) 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (106,436) - (106,436) 142,561

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,741,584 2,378,432 7,120,016 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 406,304 - 406,304 880,870
Incentive Fee ** - - 81,261 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 232,252 232,252 545,765 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.1i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 5 128 133 133 -
ATTENDANCE 37,708 714,532 752,240 752,240 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 154,172 1,081,350 1,235,522 1,235,522 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 147,595 1,443,467 1,591,062 1,691,062 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 301,767 2,524,817 2,826,584 2,826,584 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 328,826 1,586,174 1,915,000 1,915,000 -
TOTAL INCOME 630,593 4,110,991 4,741,584 4,741,584 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE - 17,929 82,680 100,609 100,609 -
FINANCE 22,821 167,456 190,277 190,277 -
MARKETING 33,896 174,557 208,453 208,453 -
OPERATIONS 142,151 1,035,270 1,177,421 1,177,421 -
BOX OFFICE 13,868 100,495 114,363 114,363 -
LUXURY SEATING 16,098 101,894 117,992 117,992 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 6,281 29,865 36,146 36,146 -
OVERHEAD 175,168 1,157,633 1,332,801 1,332,801 -
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 428,212 2,849,850 3,278,062 3,278,062 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 202,380 1,261,141 1,463,622 1,463,622 -
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 45,000 45,000 (45,000)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 157,380 1,261,141 1,418,522 1,463,522 (45,000)

-
Comments:
The Arena was busier in August with 3 concerts and a Wrestling event.

Through the first two months of the fiscal year, Net Income above General Mahagey,
Expenses is consistent with the original budget, with no changes
being made to the forecast.

ector of Finance:



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 21, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating resuits for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH August August August
Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 4 4 6
Attendance 26,763 30,000 39,867
Direct Event Income $89,504 $121,622 $125,832
Ancillary Income 115,843 110,262 134,036
Other Income 186,290 159,584 157,216
Indirect Expenses (220,354) (273,005) (227,551)
Net Income $171,283 $118,463 $189,533
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 5 7 12
Attendance 37,708 54,000 78,485
Direct Event Income $154,172 $226,459 $253,231
Ancillary income 147,595 201,612 230,312
Other Income 328,826 319,168 316,583
Indirect Expenses (428,213) (544,760) (440,546)
Net Income $202,380 $202,479 $359,579
Less Capital ($45,000) ($16,750)
Net Income after Capital $157,380 $202,479 $342,830

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in below expected levels as the ZZ Top and Ringo Starr concerts
fell below the budgeted average, however, this was offset a little by the very successful
John Mayer concert and the live WWE performance.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in at expected levels for the month due to higher than anticipated
per caps for the shows held during the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

indirect expenses came in below expected levels for the month.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

----------------- CURRENT- - = == =====cemmememee =meemwecoooooooYTDmocccccmmccoammmceeoo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 79,840 123,000 120,824 138,027 216,000 246,123
SERVICES INCOME 9,664 <1,378> 5,009 16,144 10,459 7,108
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 89,504 121, 622 125,832 154,172 226,459 253,231
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 79,307 78,762 108,165 102,421 144,912 168,516
NOVELTY 36,536 31,500 25,870 45,174 56,700 60,256
OTHER ANCILLARY 0 0 0 0 0 1,540
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 115, 843 110,262 134,036 147,595 201,612 230,312
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 205,347 231,884 259,868 301,767 428,071 483,543
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 186,290 159,584 157,216 328,826 319,168 316,583
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 391,637 391,468 417,084 630,593 747,239 800,126
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,226 8,258 8,656 17,929 16,516 14,048
FINANCE 10,953 15,732 7,981 22,821 31,464 19,940
MARKETING 15,967 17,456 13,635 33,896 34,912 25,497
LUXURY SEATING 6,136 9,832 6,779 16,098 19,664 13,591
OPERATIONS 78,221 98,117 94,387 142,151 196,234 169,113
BOX OFFICE 6,244 9,531 5,611 13,868 17,812 12,111
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,483 3,013 1,304 6,281 6,026 5,099
OVERHEAD 91,124 111, 066 89,197 175,168 222,132 181,147
INDIRECT EXPENSES 220,354 273,005 227,551 428,213 544,760 440,546
NET OPERATING INCOME 171,283 118,463 189,533 202,380 202,479 359,580
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 45,000 0 16,750 45,000 0 16,750
OTHER EXPENSES 45,000 0 16,750 45,000 0 16,750
NET INCOME (LOSS) 126,283 118,463 172,783 157,380 202,479 342,830




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

---------------- CURRENT--------ccoecoceo —cccocoooeo-—_YEAR TO DATE-------==-==--
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 37,039 0 17,074 56,835 0 57,860
Labor Billed 1,620 1,620 2,160 2,160 3,240 3,832
Changeover Setup Billed 8,515 9,900 11,899 11,796 19,800 25,437
Stagehands Billed 60,619 69,500 50,773 75,813 111,500 132,893
Security Billed 17,312 18,000 28,168 24,345 36,000 49,921
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 9,079 10,500 19,962 13,001 21,000 29,347
Box Office Billed 1,161 1,200 1,290 1,548 2,400 2,580
Ticketing Service Billed 17,197 29,000 28,422 33,243 53,000 51,394
City Police Fire Billed 952 1,008 2,072 1,232 2,016 3,528
EMT Medical Billed 1,300 1,800 2,363 1,900 3,600 5,763
Cleaning Billed 8,809 10,800 16,654 12,071 21,600 26,600
Insurance Billed o 0 455 o [] 455
Telephone Billed 4,300 4,400 3,675 5,600 6,800 8,420
Other Production Billed 13,987 23,000 69,956 24,444 35,000 118,044
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 181,889 180,728 254,921 263,987 315,956 516,072
Advertising Expense 34,249 0 17,074 54,934 0 55,303
Labor Wages 1,377 1,836 1,836 1,836 3,213 3,257
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 9,009 12,000 14,478 11,843 21,000 36,576
Stagehand Wages 58,367 67,896 47,411 72,935 108,927 127,940
Contracted Security Expense 18,006 19,200 37,742 23,999 33,600 51,557
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 7,004 11,200 20,934 10,559 19,600 36,022
Ticket Sellers Wages 658 0 1,097 987 0 2,193
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene 329 4} 0 329 0 0
Ticket Service Charge Expense 14,311 29,000 23,361 27,071 53,000 42,119
City Police Fire Expense 952 1,344 2,072 1,232 2,352 3,528
EMT Medical Expense 1,368 2,087 1,785 1,759 3,652 4,335
Contracted Cleaning Expense 7,523 13,091 23,506 10,597 22,909 39,850
Insurance Expense 0 0 776 0 0 776
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,433 1,452 1,092 1,867 2,244 2,600
Production Expense 17,638 23,000 56,749 27,895 35,000 102,908
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 172,225 182,106 249,912 247,842 305,497 508,964
NET SERVICE INCOME 9,664 <1,378> 5,009 16,144 10,459 7,108




VAN ANDEL ARENA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2003

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

4,933,462
1,219,979
98,487

6,251,927

6,251,928

198,886
523,275
1,938,669
1,325,098

3,985,928

107,073
157,380
2,001,547

2,266,000

6,251,928




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/03

----------------- CURRENT -~ === === === mmm e oo e ee e s YTD o mmcmmmm oo mmmme ool
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 43,057 43,608 44,047 87,544 87,216 87,308
Part-Time 1,918 2,918 3,047 3,685 5,836 5,873
Wages-Trade 63,456 78,186 65,874 98,797 156, 372 160,018
Auto Allowance 577 0 0 1,154 [} 0
Auto Expense 300 835 777 600 1,670 1,554
Taxes & Benefits 28,081 33,656 28,745 50,481 67,312 58,854
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <71,240> <61,667> <65,597> <97,880> <124,584> <159,293>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 66,150 97,536 76,894 144,381 193, 822 154,315
Contracted Security 19,103 19,583 18,802 39,235 39,166 37,097
Contracted Cleaning 8,615 2,167 0 10,917 4,334 4,196
Other Contracted Services 0 300 314 314 600 658
Travel & Entertainment 1,541 325 2,984 2,627 650 3,351
Corporate Travel 0 625 2,745 0 1,250 2,745
Meetings & Conventions 0 625 0 0 1,250 0
Dues & Subscriptions 1,107 208 0 2,155 416 0
Employee Training 4] 1,000 0 39 2,000 1]
Computer Expense 2,605 5,417 3,099 4,552 10,834 4,938
Professional Fees 2,057 2,167 494 4,057 4,334 1,994
Marketing & Advertising 6,196 8,250 2,601 17,361 16,500 6,044
Box Office Expenses <230> 0 343 <241> 0 341
Trash Removal 740 1,250 1,513 1,738 2,500 3,115
Equipment Rental 48 1,300 1,788 2,246 2,600 2,975
Landscaping 0 292 0 ] 584 [
Exterminating 248 333 [ 248 666 248
Cleaning 1] 450 8,739 ] 200 8,738
Repairs & Maintenance 11,443 10,666 10,172 12,934 21,332 15,587
Supplies 6,760 15,091 11,932 9,737 30,182 20,549
Bank Service Charges 886 1,000 620 1,317 2,000 1,308
Insurance 13,480 13,699 7,881 17,628 27,398 17,243
Printing & Stationary 0 1,917 0 0 3,834 0
Office Supplies 574 1,000 785 735 2,000 785
Postage 162 1,000 1,419 363 2,000 1,587
Parking Expense 0 1,592 1,538 3,706 3,184 3,886
Telephone Long Distance 10,119 4,583 5,271 11,791 9,166 10,874
Utilities 52,633 64,150 49,364 107,205 128, 300 106,092
Base Fee 19,752 19,525 20,500 38,709 39, 050 39,000
Common Area Expense <2,202> <2,671> <1,157> <3,673> <5,342> <4,522>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,433> <3755 <1,092> <1,867> <750> <2,600>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 154,205 175,469 150,656 283,833 350,938 286,231
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 220,354 273,008 227,551 428,213 544,760 440,546




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 45,000 55,000 50% Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 45,000 140,000
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 45,000 140,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,522  (1,598,423) (104,901) 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (106,436) - (106,436) 142,561
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,741,584 2,378,432 7,120,016 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 406,304 - 406,304 880,870
Incentive Fee ** - - 81,261 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 232,252 232,252 545,765 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Two Months Ended August 31, 2003

i BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of net assets and cash receipts and
disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts of the Grand
Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the two months ended August 31, 2003, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include the cash
receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the
Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

September 12, 2003
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
S U 6090 F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

MICHIGAN BUSINESS ADvISORS » CPAs > FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-26709 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



%——
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%

% BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Assets

August 31, 2003

ASSETS CONSTRUCTION OPERATING TOTAL
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents - Authority $ 14,834,958 $ 1612427 $ 16,447,385
Cash and Equivalents - Facility - 3,620,013 3,620,013
Investments 19,921,727 - 19,921,727
Receivables, Net - 1,232,040 1,232,040
Prepaid Expenses - 117,750 117,750
Contract Rights - 5,737 5737
Total Current Assets 34,756,685 6,587,967 41,344,652
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress 56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
Total Noncurrent Assets 56,229,162 3,507 56,232.669
TOTAL ASSETS 90,985,847 6,591,474 97,577,321
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable = 643,033 643,033
Accrued Expenses = 418,296 418,296
Advance Ticket Sales o 1,079,206 1,079,206
Advance Deposits & 202,952 202,952
Deferred Facility Income - 441,506 441.506
TOTAL LIABILITIES = 2,784,993 2,784,993
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets 56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
Fund Balance 34,756,685 3,802,974 38,559,659
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 90,985,847 $ 3,806,481 $ 94,792,328

L' E ﬁ: N E G A Ruﬂ- E R L ﬂ_ P See accountants' report



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2003 to August 31, 2003

RECEIPTS
Facility Operations
Land Lease
Interest on investments
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer
Miscellaneous Revenue
TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS

Accounting / Auditing Services

Insurance - Property and Liability

Legal Services

Other Contractual Services

Pedestrian Safety

Facility Management Fees

Meeting Expense

Supplies

Transfer to Construction Account
Sub-total Service Disbursements

Electricity
Steam
Water and Sewer
Sub-total Utility Disbursements

Building Additions and Improvements
Facility Equipment Acquisition
Sub-tctal Capital Disbursements
Employee Wages
Employee Benefits
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Total Net Assets - End of Period

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
1,827,565 § - $ - $ -
107,000 17,802 - -
20,000 1,723 12,000 1,012
930,402 - (930,402) -
8,000 - - -
2,892,967 19,525 (918,402) 1,012
59,245 1,241 - -
33,595 - - -
32,000 11,837 - -
42,000 - - -
95,000 - - -
890 28 - -
1,000 48 - -
1,000,000 - - -
1,263,730 13,154 - -
1,031,332 88,189 - -
831,834 28,791 - -
99,300 6,873 - -
1,962,466 123,852 - -

- - 45,000 -

- - 115,000 -

- - 160,000 -
53,300 8,200 - -
17,366 2,343 - -
70,666 10,543 - -

3,296,862 147,550 160,000 -
(403,895) $ (128,025) $ (1,078,402) § 1,012

3,403,895 © 2,104,933 + 1,596,704 1,828,561

3,000,000 $ 1,976,908 $ 518,302 $ 1,829,573

See Comments
1and 2

See Comments
1and 2

Comment 1. Facilties Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 28, 2003.
Comment 2: Facilities Operations columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andej Arena and Grand Center

financial statements prepared by SMG.

i BEENE GARTER LLP

See accountants’ report



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)
From July 1, 2003 to August 31, 2003

RECEIPTS
Grand Action
Downtown Development Authority
County of Kent
City of Grand Rapids - grant proceeds
Transfer from Operating Fund
Interest on Investments
TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services
Construction Material Testing
Construction - GMP Contractor
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements

Insurance - Property / Liability
Legal Services
Owner's Representatives
Other Contractual Services
Telephone
Sub-total Service Disbursements

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Total Net Assets - End of Period

Convention Center Construction

Budget Actual
S 32,048,961 $ -
10,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 -
3,528,884 -
1,000,000 -
397,550 47.600
51,975,395 5,047,600
4,605,255 234,810
583,610 35,510
56,390.602 7.742.653
61,579,467 8,012,973
116,100 116,100
7,000 295
245,000 48,710
1,141,035 265,508
2,000 293
1,511,135 430,905
63,090,602 8,443,878

$ (11,115,207)

33,271,289

$ (3,396,278)

94,382,125

_$ 22,156,082
See Comment

$ 90,985,847

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on March 26, 2003.

See accountants’ report

BEENE GARTER LLP



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Sep 17 | Available
Thur, Sep 18 | DP Fox MS Arena 5:00 PM Teams arrive
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10:15 Red/White game
11:00 PM Teams leave
DP Fox MW | Banquet All 5:00 PM Set-up
6:15P-7:30P VIP reception
Fri, Sep 19 Team of Destiny AH Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
10:00 AM Merchandise load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
Banquet A 4P-5:30P Meeting
7:00 PM Doors
8P-12A General session
Sat, Sep 20 Team of Destiny AH Arena 8:00 AM Doors
9A-10:30A Women’s only session
10:30 AM Men enter the building
11A-4P General session
4P-5:30P Break
5:30P-11P General session
9:30P-10P Break
10P-11P General session
Sun, Sep 21 Team of Destiny AH Arena 9:30 AM Doors
10:30A-11:30A | Worship service
11:30A-1P General session
Mon, Sep 22 | Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 1:00 PM Dumpster to Area #2
7:00 PM Power to trailers/Tents set-up
10:00 PM Train arrives
Tue, Sep 23 Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 8:00 AM Animals unload from train
8:30 AM Animal walk begins
9:00 AM Pre-rig
10:00 AM Gray water tanks installed
11:00 AM Spot light load-in
12:00 PM Wagons unloaded
1:00 PM Health Department walk-thru
4:00 PM Sells Floto walk-thru
Wed, Sep 24 | Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 10:00 AM Sells Floto load-in
3:.00PM Pyro test
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-9:35P Performance #1
Thur, Sep 25 | Ringling Bros. Circus MS Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-9:35P Performance #2
Fri, Sep 26 Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-9:35P Performance #3
Sat, Sep 27 Ringling Bros. Circus MS Arena 10:30 AM Doors
11:30A-1:35P Performance #4
1:35P-2:30P Quick clean
2:30 PM Doors
3:30P-5:35P Performance #5
5:35P-6:30P Quick clean
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-9:35P Performance #6
Sun, Sep 28 Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 1:00 PM Doors
2P-4.05P Performance #7
4:05 PM Load-out
4:30 PM Animal walk back
Mon, Sep 29 | Available
Tue, Sep 30 Available




Wed, Oct 1 Available

Thur, Oct 2 Available

Fri, Oct 3 Available

Sat, Oct 4 Shania Twain AH Arena 7:30 PM Performance

Sun, Oct § Available

Mon, Oct 6 Available

Tue, Oct 7 Available

Wed, Oct 8 Available

Thur, Oct 9 Available

Fri, Oct 10 PBR MS Arena 8:00 PM Performance

Sat, Oct 11 PBR MS Arena 8:00 PM Performance

Sun, Oct 12 Detroit Pistons MS Arena 6:00 PM Exhibition basketball game
Mon, Oct 13 | Available

Tue, Oct 14 Available

Wed, Oct 15 | Available

Thur, Oct 16 | Available

Fri, Oct 17 Michael W. Smith MS Arena 7:30 PM Performance

Sat, Oct 18 Griffins vs Houston Aeros AH Arena 7:30 PM Hockey season opener
Sun, Oct 19 Available




p:\4 Ag€07T 0L $Y00d du /Ad 11 TVOISSVIO ~ OS¥D €100 Td
TVSYVIHTI Nado d01-dOE"L
D\ ONVH JIN dL-dv /Ad 11 TVOISSV1D - OSHD Z 100 ‘S¥NHL
TVSavaHad d0T-dOE'L
MV TVSYVIHIY d9-d0g'€ /Ad 1 TVOISSVID — OS¥D 1100 ‘gam
TVSIVIHTE d0T-dOE L
1s NI SAOW di-vé /Ad 11 TVOISSVID - OS¥D 0€ 1d43S 'sani
1N0 AOW "QIA-dOE'6
JANNIA dot:L
MOHS d0£:6-40S°9
$900d d9
e TVSIVIHTE dy :0) YINNIA 3417 NO SN204 62 L3S 'NOW
1N0 JAON d0£:01-40€°S
1s SONVNOIIAd d0E:5-d¢ /Ad SSTUIXT LHOITIVLS
N NI SAOW dg-d1 MO WANNIQ 9417 NO S04 8z 1ddS ‘NNS
SONVINIOLIEd d0€°01-d8
1s SONVIRNOIAd dOE:t-dz Ad SSTUIXT LHOITIVLS LT Ld8S "LVS
1S FONVANOIEd dOE:01-d8 /AQ SSEYAXT LHOITIVLS 9 L3S T84
FONVINIOTIEd d01-dOE'L
18 JONVINNONAd dOEt-de /Ad SSTYIXT LHOITIVLS | ST 1ddS SUNHL
1s JONVINNOLHEd d01-dO€:L /Ad SSTYIXT LHOITIVLS
110 JAOW dO1-d0E8
SLISIHXE d0€:8-d9
an 13s dS-NOON SONZYIINOD
N NI AOW NOON-V8 /HO €/ SYFOVNVIN £00Z HOIAYAS SAH vz LSS dam
SONVINIOZIAd d0T-dOE"L
1S NI SAOW ds-vs /AQ SSTYdXH LHOITIVLS €2 1d9S ‘SANL
TIVO JEOM aIN-dL
1S NI SAOW d9-v8 IAG SSTAAXH LHOITIVLS 2z 1ddS ‘NOW
1S | ONVH-Sud/dNILS GSNOH dOE:11-dOE L /AQ SSTIAXH LHOITVLS
110 IAOW d8-dS
FONVINIOTHEd ds-dg
ONILVES OL S400d dOE:T OS¥O ORIL NOLSONIN FHL
1S A8807 0L SY00d az /Ad 15d0d — OS¥D 12 14dS "NNS
HONVNIOJ¥Ad d01-d8
ONILVES OL S¥00d dog:L OS¥O ORYL NOLSONDA GHL
18 A8€071 0L $Y00d dL /Ad 15d0d — OS¥D
1N0 FA0N d9-d€
WVD0Ud de-d1
HONN'T d1-NOON
WVID0¥d NOON-VS1:8
MOHSEAVYL NOON-V6
LSVDIvaEdd VSI:8-VOE:L MOHSIAVIL
ar NI SAOW VOE:L-VY /HO €12 INIA "ONI *SNOS % WVHVYEV 'S 0z LdSS "LVS
dn 195 OV A1€ISS0d ds-dt MOHSIAVIL
ar dn 13§ AV ds-d1 /HD €17 ININ "ONI ‘SNOS % WVHVEY 'S
SONVINIOLdEd do1-ds
ONILVES OL S400d do€:L OS¥D ORIL NOLSONIY FHL
1S Ag€01 0L $300d dL /AQ 15d0d -~ OS¥D 61 LdSS Tdd
TVSIVIHTE d01-dL OTdL NOLSONIY GHL
1S NI SAOW d1-v6 /Ad 15d0d ~ OS¥D 81 Ld9S SYNHL
L1 LdSS ‘dam
91 Ldds 'sanl
NOLLOMLLSNOD/SNOLLVYE4O o3 NOLLONNA FWIL WOO¥ INIAT a1va

€007 AVAA — ATHIM dOV1d SOA 3d




ADAO0T ATVMAAS

1NO FAON d8-dL
NOILJFOTA di-d9 WALdVHD NVOIHIIN NYELSIM —
ar NI SAONW d9-ds JAE9OT AQ | SLOTLIHOYY J0 JLNLILSNI NVORIFWY
100 FAON d8-d¢
dN MOHS de-vs /HI'HO MOHS SSINISNE FHL 91 100 SAUNHL
AV TVSYVIHTE NIdO d11-d0¢:L /Ad v¥dd0 — NIW ANV FDIN 40
IN MOHS d9-VOg:L /HI'HO MOHS SSINISNE FHL S1.100 'aam
TVSIVIHTI di-de
AV TIVO SRIOM d9-v8 /Ad V440 - NIW ANV JOIN 40
L NI SAONW d9-vs8 /HI'HD MOHS SSINISNE FHL #1 100 'SINL
TVSIVIHTA di1-dL
AV TIVID ROM d9-v8 /Ad vydd0 — NI dNV FOIN 40
AN NI HAON ds-vs3 MHA'HO MOHS SSINISNE FHL €1 120 'NOW
TVSAVIHTI dil-dL
AV NI HAON d9-v3 /AQ V340 — NI ANV FOIN 40 71100 'NAS
aDID0T ATVMAAS
1NO JAON d6-d$
ar MOHS ds-vii /HD £00Z OdXd ONIAdIM TN LSEM
AV NI SAON do1-v8 /Ad V340 - NIW ANV I 40 111200 'LVS
aDIDO0T AIVMAIS
MOHS d6-d$
a0 NI SAOW JOANIA d-vol /HO £007 OdXd ONIGdIm TN LSIm
1NO FAON Voe:1-d0g-01
FONVINIORIAd d0€:01-d8
ONILVES OL $3400d dog:L
A€94d01 OL S800d dL
TVSEVIHTA d9-d¢
AV YIAOQTONVHO dZ-NOON /Ad 1 TVID3dS — OS¥D 01 100 Tid
AV SNOILIANY NRIOH doE-v6 /A SNOLLIANYV — OSAD
Ll NI SAOW LNIITO di-NOON /HD £007 OdXd ONIAJIM TN LSIM
YIAOFONVHO d11-doi
TVSIVIHTI do1-dL
AV YIAOHONVHO di-d9 /AQ TVSYVIHTE — VIddO 6 100 SANHL
AV SNOLLIANY NAOH ds-vé /Ad SNOILIANYV — 0S¥ 8120 'dam
AV SNOILLIANY NOH ds-vé /Ad SNOILIANYV — OS¥D L 1D0 Sdnl
JTVSIVEHTY NIdO - OS¥D 9120 ‘NOW
1NO IAON ds-dv
FONVINIO:NIAd di-dt
ONILVES OL S300d doe:T
00Z ONILLAd SYiT-ds1:T
p:\4 Ag90T 0L SY00d {4 /Ad 1 ATIAVA —- OS4D $ 120 'NNs
AINVINIOIIAd dOe:01-d8
DNILVES OL $3900d dogiL
lvadadn dog:L-dL
AV AgdO1 0L SY00d di /A 11 TVDISSVID — OSdD
YIAOTONVHD VI do¢:t-dot e
TVSIVAHTA dog:e-d1
p:\4 YIAOFONVHO VI NOON-IWVOL /A 1 ATINVA — OS¥D ¥ 1200 'LVS
FINVINIOIIAd d0t£:01-d8
DNILVES OL S300d dog:L
lvdddn d0¢:L-dL
NOLLONYLSNOD/SNOLLVYALO o | NOILONNA ANIL WOOY LINIAT JLva

€007 IVAX — ATAIIM dOV1d SOA HA




FAINTITINOD

4N MOHS d9-vs MO |  NOILLYONQE NI VI ¥0d J0SSY I 0€ LJO "S¥NHL
TVSIIHII d01-d0EL
AV TVSAVIHAS d9-dOE:€ /Ad 11 TVOISSVIO = OS¥D
FONFUHANOD
an NI JAOW ds-vs /HO | NOLLYONQd NI VIGIIN ¥O4 D0SSY IN 67 100 ‘dam
TVSIvVIHR d01-d0E°L
TVSIVIHIY d9-dog'€
D\ NI FAOW dI-vs /Ad 111 TVOISSVIO — OS¥D 87 100 "SANL
1IN0 JAON d01-d€
an MOHS de-vs MHI'HO WNAO4 S ATV LT 100 'NOW
10 JAON d0€°8-d0E"Y
FONVANOMAd d0Et-dT
ONILVES OL $300d dog:1
p:\ A€€07 0L $900d di /Ad 1TTIVE - NVIO0¥d Ty
ATdVd VOE£T1-d8
an MOHS dO€:9-VO! /HI'HO W04 SATVI 97 100 'NAS
FONVANOIIEd d01-d0¢°L
ONILVES OL $¥00d dL
P\ A8€07 OL SY00d d0€'9 /Ad 13TIVE ~ NVEO0Ud dTd
MOHS d01-49
dn NI SAOW NOON-V8 /HA'HO W04 S.ATVIA $T100°LVS
FONVNIOAYAd d0T-dOE"L
ONILVES OL $¥00d dL
Y AS€0T 0L $900d d0£9 /AQ LITTVE - WV¥DO0Ud Y
I NI SAOW do-vi /HE'HO WNAOd SATYI 2 100 Tdd
IN NI SAOW ds-vg Jizc WNYO4 S.ATYIW
TVSEVaHTA dri-dL
D\ NI FAOW d9-vs /AQ 1T7TVE - NVIDO¥d Ty £7 10O SYNHL
TVSIvIHTE di-dL
A NI SAOW d9-v38 /Ad 1ITIVE ~ NVIDOUd Iy 27100 'dam
TVSYVaHEA dri-dL
D\ NI SAOW d9-vs /Ad LITIVE - WVYDO0Ud dTY 12100 'sani
IVSavaHad d11-dL
D\ NI JAOW dg-v8 /Ad LITIVE - NVEO0Ud dT
N3O Y TYMANS ds-VOE'8
100 IAON dS-NOON TVNOISSZI0¥d TIVOHLTVEH
ar MOHS NOON-V0E6 /HO W04 ALFID0S NVOTWY 02 LOO "NOW
N3dO S TVMAS d0E5-V3
MOHS d0E:9-dOE Y TVNOISSHA0¥d TAVOHLTVAH
ar NI FAOW dE-vs /HD MOd ALFIO0S NVORIANY
ONVH-T4d d11-d9 e LITTVE-WVIO0Ud dT 61 100 'NNS
1N0 9AON VO£T-d0£ 01
FONVINHOLdAd dOg:01-dOE:L
ONILVES OL $300d dL
lvagdn dL-dog:9
P\ A8€01 0L SY00d dst9 /Ad VYEdO ~ NEW ANV I 40
Q=100 ATVAANS TVNOISS3A0ud TdVOHLTVIH
ar NI SAOW INAITO o /HO ¥4 ALFID0S NVORITWY 81100 'LVS
FONVAROIAd d0£-01-d0E:L
ONILVAS OL $300d dL
1vaadn d-dog:9
D\ A88071 0L $900d dst:9 /Ad VYEd0 ~ NI ANV OIN 40 L1100 T¥d
AV SNIva Sva /AQ Va0 -~ NIW NV FOIN 40
NOLLDMLLSNOD/SNOLLVIEJO od NOLLONNA AWLL W0oY INIAT aLva

€007 AVHA — ATAEdM FOVId SOA HA




HONVINIOIdHd d0te:01-48
DNILVES OL S400d d0g:L
lvaddn dog:L-dL

AV Ag90T1 0L S400d dL /Ad 111 TVIISSVID — OS¥O

1N0 FIAON d9-dt HONTITINOD

IN MOHS dt-vé /HD NOLLVONAd NI VIGIW JO4 DOSSV I 1€ 120 Tdd

TVSIVIHTA do1-dL

AV ONVH JIN di-dv /Ad III TVOISSVID — OS¥D

NOLLONILSNOD/SNOLLVIIdO 24 NOILINNA IWLL NOOY INIAT aLva

€007 IVAA — ATIHHIM HOV'1d SOA 5d




